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HEARING: 

LOCATION: 

Wednesday, January 30, 2019 
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Fairfield Fire & EMS 

106 Steelman Street 

Fairfield, Pennsylvania 17320 
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HAZEL KEAHEY, MATTHEW WATSON, MONA YOUNG, BRENT 
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P R O C E E D I N G S 

MR. REPETZ: Good evening. We are now 

on the record. Good evening and welcome to the 

Pennsylvania Department of Environmental 

Protection's public hearing regarding Specialty 

Granules, LLC mining permit application, and the 

related NPDES permit as for the National Pollutant 

Discharge Elimination System. 

My name is John Repetz. I'm the 

community relations coordinator for DEP's south 

central regional office in Harrisburg. I am joined 

this evening by a number of staff from DEP that 

include Dan Sammarco, who is our district mining 

manager. Rock Martin, who is a permit chief. And 

we' re also joined by Chad Paronish, Dave Thomas, and 

Dan Welte. Also joining us from DEP are John 

Brakeall from DEP's office of Environmental Justice, 

and Erika Furlong, regional counsel from the south 

central office. 

We want to start by thanking the staff 

here at Fairfield Fire and EMS for hosting this 

event here this evening. The purpose of this 

hearing is to receive testimony on the permit 

application. As such, DEF staff will not address 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 
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questions at this time. We may be available to 

address any other additional questions following the 

conclusion of this hearing. 

This permit application is being 

reviewed by staff from DEP's Cambria mining office 

in Ebensburg. A copy of the permit application is 

available for review in that office. A copy is also 

available for review at the Adams County 

Conversation District office in Gettysburg. The 

information is also available electronically on 

DEP's website, on the Cambria mining office page, 

and the south central regional offices community 

information page. Please see me afterwards if you 

wish to access that information and I can tell you 

how to access those web pages. 

This proceeding is being recorded by a 

court reporter who will produce an official 

transcript of all of tonight's comments. All 

questions and comments will be addressed in the 

future in the form of a comment response document, 

which will be provided to those offering testimony 

tonight. So please make sure the DEP staff has your 

contact information before you leave. 

We are also accepting written 

comments. Written comments carry the same weight as 

Sargent 1 s Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 
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oral testimony presented this evening. For that 

reason, it is not necessary to read written comments 

in their entirety to have them become part of the 

official record. If you do have written comments, 

we encourage you to verbally summarize them and 

submit the written comments after you're completed. 

If you wish to submit written comments 

after this proceeding, you may do so. Written 

comments will be accepted for two more weeks. 

Again, see us for how to properly submit those 

written comments. 

We typically ask each witness to keep 

their comments to about five minutes. We will be 

somewhat flexible with that timeframe, but we ask 

you in an effort to keep things moving that you keep 

your comments concise and to the point. Those 

presenting testimony are to begin by stating their 

name and spell it to ensure that the official 

transcript is as accurate as possible. And also 

please state any affiliation you may have. 

Finally, a couple of housekeeping 

notes. To aid in accurately transcribing this 

hearing, we ask that everyone be courteous of others 

and remain quiet while testimony is being presented. 

There are also sign-in sheets at the table near the 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
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door. If you have not already done so on your way 

in, we ask that you please sign in so we have a 

record of who was in attendance tonight. Finally, 

if you need to use the restrooms, they are located 

through the double doors and to your right. Thank 

you for coming and joining us tonight, braving the 

elements. And with that we will get started. So I 

will ask for volunteers to come up one at a time and 

we will get started. 

MR. MCCLURE: Matthew, M-A-T-T-H-E-W, 

McClure, M-C, capital C, L-U-R-E. I am Matthew 

McClure, executive director of operations for 

Specialty Granules, the applicant for the mining and 

water quality permits for the purposed northern 

tract quarry project, which is subject to this 

evening's public meeting. With me this evening is 

SGI' s president, Justin Dunlap. 

First, on behalf of SGI, I want to 

express our appreciation for the questions and 

comments provided today by members of the public. 

We review those comments carefully. With respect to 

the public, consistent with our ongoing commitment 

to the community, and in an effort to answer 

questions and avoid misperceptions, on November 12th 

SGI provided to the Department very detailed 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
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responses and supporting information regarding each 

of the points raised. Our full set of responses and 

all related appendices are available to you on the 

community section of the PADEP south central 

regional website. And additional information is 

available on our website, SGicommunity.com. We 

encourage you to access and review those materials. 

Our responses and the initial 

information we have provided for review by the 

Department and by you cover the full range of issues 

raised in the July 23rd public meeting and 

subsequent written comments. Those include 

hydrologic impacts, protecting Toms Creek, Miney 

Branch impacts, blasting practices, truck traffic, 

noise and community sound levels, asbestos, air 

quality, historic resources, protected and other 

species, past discharge events, lighting issues, 

reclamation plan requirements, use of best practices 

and SGI's acquisition of the northern tract 

property. 

First let me emphasize that the 

northern tract quarry will extend the life of 

mining. It is not designed to increase our rate of 

production of inert and non-toxic rock used in 

roofing granules. The northern tract quarry will 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 
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12 

allow for the continuation of 147 welding jobs. 

As explained in our responses, SGI has 

taken and will continue to take a range of actions 

to avoid and reduce impacts on our neighbors. 

First, there is a planned Route 16 direct connection 

project that when completed, will reduce truck 

traffic on Old Waynesboro Road and the Monterey 

historic district by up to 80 percent. We are 

hopeful to complete that project as early as the end 

of this year subject to obtaining PennDOT's approval 

on our pending permit application. 

With regard to environmental 

protection we've adopted and will continue to pursue 

best management practices that meet and go beyond 

compliance with applicable environmental 

regulations, including advanced storm water 

management practices, establishment of a 300 foot 

buffer to Toms Creek and maintenance of a forested 

buffer around the quarry. We also implement 

advanced blasting design performance in both 

operational practices such as limited nighttime 

operations at the northern tract quarry and 

equipment improvements to reduce noise generation 

and propagation. 

SGI considers the health and safety of 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
I 8 1 4 l 5 3 6 - 8 9 o 8 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

its employees and the surrounding community to be of 

utmost importance. The presence of actinolite, a 

rock that can produce asbestos form fibers is very 

rare in the metabasalt formations mined at the SGI 

site. But we take extraordinary measures to avoid 

and mitigate any risks of exposure. Trained 

personal regularly survey the active mining area. 

In response to concerns raised by commenters, SGI 

conducted outdoor air monitoring around the entire 

perimeter of the Charmian facility in order to test 

for asbestiform fibers in the outdoor air. 

13 

Ten (10) locations were sampled. Each 

one for a period of eight days. Two of the 10 

samples were found to contain just one asbestiform 

fiber each. And the concentrations of such fibers 

found were not statistically different than average 

outdoor air concentrations in the United States. 

The outdoor air sampling concentrations near the SGI 

facility were one-one hundredth of the action level 

DEP has established for other quarries. And do not 

present risk to human health. These and many other 

answers to questions raised are detailed on the 

PADEP website and SGicommunity.com. 

There has been some misinformation 

disseminated in the community and we would encourage 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
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you to access both websites for comprehensive 

information. We are serious about being a good 

neighbor now and over the long term. Like the 

Department, we are here tonight to listen to your 

questions, concerns, and suggestions. And as we 

have done with the respect to the comments received 

to date, we will review those comments with care and 

provide appropriate responses. 

Thank you for being here, for your 

involvement and for your consideration. 

MR. REPETZ: Thank you, Matt. Next, 

please. 

MR. UNGAR: Good evening. 

Sanford Ungar, S-A-N-F-0-R-D, U-N-G-A-R. 

My name is 

I spoke in 

this same spot on the same issues six months ago. 

Tonight I'll repeat some of what I said last time to 

those who may not have heard it. But also tonight, 

how and why I've come to feel even more strongly 

than I did last July about the profound threat 

facing this community. 

14 

My wife and I have owned a property on 

Gum Springs Road in Fairfield for 23-and-a-half 

years. Our two children spent large parts of their 

youth here learning about the wilderness and the 

country side, swimming and fishing in our ponds, 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
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15 

hiking and playing badminton and volleyball. 

Bringing friends up so they could all learn to ski 

together nearby at Ski Liberty. 

We're not full-time residents here but 

we have put our heart and soul into our home, 

honoring our commitment to Adams County to keep our 

property clean and green, taking our fresh cold 

water from a spring that floats near Toms Creek, 

thinning our woods from time to time to keep them 

healthy and never giving a moment's thought to 

subdividing or developing our land to exploit its 

significant economic potential. 

We have however remodeled and expanded 

our house using locally sourced stone and wood and 

other materials. Employing local craftsman and 

adding to Hamiltonban Township's tax base. 

For years we've been inviting family 

and friends to share this paradise with us. To 

visit for a day or a weekend or more. Typically we 

go over to Gettysburg and walk the battlefield 

together and take them to the new visitor's center. 

I cannot tell you how many times as we've drove back 

home along Pennsylvania Route 116 over the hills and 

vales and through Fairfield, turning off onto Iron 

Springs and then Gum Springs roads, we have 

Sargent 1 s Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
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speculated about this retreat path taken by General 

Robert E. Lee and his troops after their loss at 

Gettysburg, looking to escape back across the 

Potomac, a stark first in the smaller battle of 

Monterey Pass. 

Some of these family and friends have 

returned and brought others and taught their own 

children about the rich history of this area. They 

found themselves among the many bikers, hikers, and 

reenactors who come here for recreation. We've had 

high hopes of recognition by the National Park 

Service and other public and private groups of the 

great significance of this territory. The calm of 

daily life here and the vision for the future for 

our children and our families that we share with 

many of our neighbors are under attack. 

The people who make up the strip 

mining company now known as SGI are for the most 

part perfectly decent human beings, we've met with 

them. But the executives do not live here among us. 

And so they may not even realize fully the impact 

they have on us. Perhaps they're not aware that our 

area is often filled with green dust that settles on 

our porches and our paths or that for many in the 

neighborhood the quality of their water is less and 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

16 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

less certain. They may not notice the massive 

trucks that run noisily past on narrow country roads 

ill-suited to support them. 

Just down the way after the managers 

have gone home, SGI's local plant in Fountaindale 

harshly illuminates the night sky every night all 

year round. It never gets dark there anymore and 

who knows what the eventual effect - what the 

eventual effect of that perpetual weird glow will 

be. 

The dramatic symbol of how our peace 

has been shattered now comes early on many weekday 

afternoons. When SGI, really practically right 

across Gum Springs Road from us, just behind its no 

trespassing signs, sets off massive blasts to loosen 

up tons of the valuable green stone it grinds up for 

themselves. 

17 

My wife and I now know just how often, 

very often, those blasts occur, because when we met 

SGI management in our home last month, we asked him 

to notify us by e-mail every time and to place 

portable seismographs on our property to measure the 

impact. Courteously, they have returned to us 

charts showing us when and how the blasts have come 

off. Seemingly, so far the blasts fall within legal 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
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limits, but still they shake our house and others 

nearby. They are freighting and disruptive and we 

have no way of knowing when they will get closer and 

louder and more threatening. 

Now SGI is asking the Department of 

Environmental Protection to approve a major 

expansion of its strip mining in this area. The 

company makes a new argument privately, if not 

publicly, that unless it is given a permit to slice 

off a historic mountain top and open a vast new pit, 

it will be unable to afford to obey the law and fill 

in and reclaim some of the old pits. So we'll just 

go deeper and deeper where it already is in our 

neighborhood, and perhaps louder and louder and more 

and more threatening to the environment, until or 

unless its product is no longer in great demand or 

the profits no longer so large and attractive. 

And then, perhaps long after many of 

us has passed, it will turn out the bright lights 

and stop the blasting and walk away, leaving our 

children and grandchildren to deal with the tragic 

and literally toxic aftermath. 

I'm not a geologist or a blaster, but 

I do have a special credential to speak of these 

matters. I was raised in a small town in 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
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northeastern Pennsylvania where more than 60 years 

ago very profitable strip mining, in that case of 

anthracite coal, was offered up as a source of good 

jobs and economic salvation. Promises were made to 

respect and protect the environment or to restore it 

when the nice people, the perfectly polite people, 

were finished doing their job on this. But those 

promises proved meaningless. Once the coal was used 

up as it inevitably was, the scarred land was 

abandoned and the companies disappeared. 

19 

Miners, the people who have these jobs 

with chronic work-related disease were left to fend 

for themselves. Economic ruin and an exodus of 

families followed. Property values plunged and tax 

Many of the small communities revenues dwindled. 

that were affected are still today struggling to 

recover and they're having a hard time attracting 

young people in search of job opportunities and a 

healthy lifestyle. 

Air pollution, water pollution, noise 

pollution, and light pollution followed eventually 

by economic catastrophe. Not a desirable fate to 

imagine for this beautiful corner of the world. 

We urge DEP not only to deny SGI this 

permit for new operations, but also to place severe 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
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restrictions on what the company is already doing to 

destroy our neighborhood, not to mention our 

history. 

Thank you. 

MR. REPETZ: Next? 

MS. WANTZ: Good evening. My name is 

Jessica Wantz. It is J-E-S-S-I-C-A, W-A-N-T-Z. I 

have resided in Hamiltonban Township for the last 14 

years. 

years. 

Prior to this, I lived in Fairfield for 22 

I own two houses in Hamiltonban Township. 

My home where I reside is less than a one mile 

radius from SGI. The other house I own is less than 

a half a mile from SGI along the Old Waynesboro 

Road. 

20 

I would like to state a few years ago, 

I came to a meeting similar to this one. I listened 

to many complaints about the mill from people who do 

not live near the mill. I heard people say things 

such as dust problems, oil runoff, and blasting 

issues. I sat back while these accusations from 

people who do not live as close to the mill as I do 

because I myself have never had any of these issues 

in the last 14 years. These remarks did spark my 

curiosity, though. And I wanted to educate myself 

on those procedures, guidelines and actual testing 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
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results of the remarks that were made at the 

meeting. 

21 

There is readily available information 

to the public on the SGI webpage. And I was very 

impressed by the up-to-date records from the 

Department of Environmental Protection available at 

the SGI office. Those records from the Department 

of Environmental Protection include date and times 

of dust samples, water samples from culverts, and 

the decibels for blasting, all of which were under 

the required marks. I was also impressed by their 

100-year flood zone, which is a multi-million dollar 

settlement pond that settles all the dust from the 

water. Anyone can see the crystal clear outcome of 

the water from Old Waynesboro Road. 

As a person who owns two homes and 

lives such a short distance from the mill, I have 

nothing but gratitude and appreciation for all that 

SGI does for their neighbors. They are now 

employing roughly 175 employees, many of which are 

from here in our own local community. I greatly 

appreciate the hundreds of thousands of dollars in 

taxes SGI pays every year, which keeps our tax 

dollars down. 

I am grateful for their superb winter 
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road maintenance along Old Waynesboro Road and all 

of the other road repairs that are maintained year 

round. 

I am pleased that everyday there are 

no trucks run from 9:00 p.m. until 7:00 a.m. for the 

local residents. And also that there are no backup 

beepers used on any of the machinery at night. They 

use strobe lights on the machinery instead. I am 

impressed by the mill taking another step to keep 

residents happy by them doing - by them being in the 

process of taking the tanker trucks off of Old 

Waynesboro Road and putting in a new road that runs 

straight from the mill to the tanker parking lot off 

of route 16. 

I believe that if the naysayers were 

as close of a neighbor as to the mill as I am 

myself, and that they educated themselves of all the 

guidelines and procedures that the mill follows to 

protect the environment and those around them, they 

would appreciate all that SGI for the environment 

and for our community. Thank you for listening and 

for your time. 

22 

MR. LARUE: My name is Steve Larue, s-

T-E-V-E, L-A, capital R, U-E. I'm the president of 

C. William Hetzer. We're a Hagerstown-based heavy 
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highway contractor. And basically we're a customer 

of SGI for aggregate for asphalt. And also being a 

heavy highway contractor, this is something I really 

haven't thought of until I'm sitting and listening. 

We've been active in a total of about 10 mines in 

the states of Virginia, Maryland, West Virginia and 

Pennsylvania. And that would be from Strasburg, 

Virginia to Mapleton. And my opinion is that this 

is a very well-run mine from what I've seen from the 

ones we've worked in. 

23 

They haven't seen fit to hire us to do 

anything for the last 20 years or so but, you know, 

I still see - I see all the different mines and 

they're definitely better than the average, way 

better. But I really just want to mention is that 

they - as a byproduct, they produce a high polished 

stone that we need in our surface nexus and that's 

for skid resistance. The state of Maryland mandates 

it. Pennsylvania does as well. West Virginia does. 

And were active in West Virginia now as an asphalt 

producer and we do buy their stone. 

And previous to them producing this 

stone, we bought our stone mostly from Virginia. 

it's imported one way or the other. You know, I 

So 

don't know what tonnage we bought last year, but it 
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was fairly significant, probably 15,000 or 20,000 

tons. And that throws a lot of Maryland tax money 

to the local economies here in Pennsylvania and adds 

to the job base. And it helps us because it's a lot 

shorter route, there's not as many trucks on the 

road going down near the metropolitan area around 

Leesburg. There is just a lot of benefits to us. 

And I think it is certainly a benefit to the 

economy. 

MR. REPETZ: Next, please. 

24 

MR. KEAHEY: My name is Thomas Keahey. 

That's K-E-A-H-E-Y. And I speak as a private 

citizen. My address is 120 Snyders Hollow Lane, 

directly across Gum Springs Road from the SGI mining 

operation. And I have to tell you that I appreciate 

the opportunity to speak in a public form such as 

this. I am a physician and licensed to practice 

medicine in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. 

My concern is what health risks 

surface mining poses for the citizens of Adams and 

Franklin Counties living in the shadow of the mining 

operation, as well as for the employees of the 

mining company itself. A primary concern is the 

possible presence of asbestos and other potentially 

toxic pollutants being dispersed into the atmosphere 
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as a result of the destructive process of blasting 

and grinding surface stone. 

I know for a fact that in 1975, when 

mining a company operated under the acronym GAF, at 

least one employee died from mesothelioma, an 

asbestos-associated malignancy. And his family was 

compensated in an out of court settlement for an 

undisclosed amount of money. 

My questions regarding the mine site 

in question are one, how many other minors and/or 

their families have been compensated for asbestos­

induced illness and/or death from mesothelioma or 

other related diseases caused by silica and other 

dangerous minerals. Two, has the mine operation 

ever been sanctioned by OSHA or the EPA for 

dangerous air pollution violations? And three, 

shouldn't the Department of Environmental Protection 

insist on independent toxic pollutant testing of the 

current mining site as well as the property in 

question for mining expansion. 

From a medical perspective, it seems 

to me that while these questions remain unanswered 

or up in the air, so to speak, allowing expansion of 

the SGI mining operation would be sheer folly. 

Thank you for the opportunity to speak. 
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MS. WENTLING: My name is Deb 

Wentling, D-E-B, W-E-N-T-L-I-N-G. There are totally 

legitimate concerns on both sides of this debate. 

We're talking about people's livelihoods. On the 

one hand it concerns about the air we breathe and 

the water we drink on the other. Both are 

significant concerns. 

The ideas that I would like to bring 

to the discussion don't relate to hydrology reports 

or fears of pollutant ponds leaking during extreme 

weather events or SGI's bottom line. My ideas are 

an appeal to conscience. Certainly people losing 

their jobs or having their wells polluted is another 

in conscience. But I would like to offer two other 

perspectives for you to consider. 

The first is a consideration of what 

is valuable. Does every rock, tree and bird derive 

its value from whether or not it is beneficial to 

human beings? Is everything simply a natural 

resource to be cut down or mined or eaten or do all 

inhabitants of the planet have a value in and of 

themselves. Perhaps we should consider this 

possibility. 

Maybe the tree or fish or bird has a 

value of its own apart from us. When you walk in 
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Michaux or at Strawberry Hill or at Carroll Valley 

Park, do you see and hear and feel that there's more 

to these spaces you're walking through than a 

usefulness to us. When we take the time to look at 

what's around us, until we actually see it, or to 

listen until we actually hear, and we become aware 

of the intrinsic value of nature. If you can accept 

that possibility, it will cause you to think 

differently. 

The other unquantifiable perspective 

we might consider is the beauty of our state. 

live near the SGI site, Pennswoods it is not. 

I 

There 

is nothing beautiful about the greenish-red water or 

the many acres devoid of life. 

looks like ecological dead zone. 

In most ways it 

Its beauty was 

sacrificed by those who view the area solely as a 

resource to be exploited. Every time we sacrifice 

beauty in this way, we sacrifice a little bit of our 

humanity. 

Pine Hill may seem like too small an 

area to warrant our concern for giving up natural 

beauty, but that's a dangerous way to think. 

dangerous? Because it is little by little that 

Why 

beauty disappears and it's little by little that we 

become less human. 
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Nature causes us to witness a kind of 

beauty that is both outside us and part of us. 

Nothing else offers us that. My views about the 

inherent value of a natural world and the importance 

of beauty in our lives do not appeal to logic or to 

science or to monetary gain. Instead I am appealing 

to your consciences and hearts. Money cannot be 

derived from viewing the natural world in this way. 

But as Native Americans warned us, only when the 

last tree has died, the last river poisoned, the 

last fish caught will we realize that we cannot eat 

money. 

28 

everything. 

Nature asks nothing of us and gives us 

It's beauty, the air we breathe, the 

food and water that sustain us. No human is that 

generous. Let's leave Pine Hill alone. Let's ask 

nothing of it. Thank you. 

MS. KEAHEY: 

that. Thank you very much. 

Keahey, spelled K-E-A-H-E-Y. 

I'm almost embarrassed by 

My name is Hazel 

Address, 120 Snyders 

Hollow. My husband spoke a few minutes ago. He 

listened to my comments on July 23 and he 

specifically instructed me today not to be snarky. 

And so I'm going to try not to be snarky. But I 

would ask Pennsylvania DEP to please review the 
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comments I made July 23, because I stand by all of 

them. 

So trying not to be snarky, I've 

decided to focus on the top 10 reasons to hope. 

July 23, 2018, our community provided clear and 

cogent reasons why SGI should not be permitted to 

destroy Pine Hill. Here's why we can hope our 

voices are finally heard. Our earlier comments 

On 

generated a 113 page response by SGI and this second 

hearing for which I thank you. 

at the tipping point of change. 

In my opinion we are 

The top 10 reasons to be hopeful. 

Number 10. Despite inadequate public notice to the 

surrounding community, we are here. Our community 

is not deterred by torrential rain, which happened 

on July 23 or by polar vortex like tonight. 

29 

Number nine. Tri-colored bats, Timber 

rattlers and nodding trilliums are here, too. We 

can celebrate that wildlife and rare plant life. 

Some protected by U.S. Wildlife and Fisheries live 

and thrive in our beautiful rural environment. 

of my very favorite quotes is the greatness of a 

nation can be judged by the way its animals are 

One 

treated. That was Mahatma Gandhi. As a community 

let's modify that quote. The greatness of the Tom's 
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Creek community is judged by the protection of bats, 

snakes, native trout, and yes, the nodding trillium. 

I hope this isn't snarky. 

Number eight. We enjoy some of the 

freshest water in the state of Pennsylvania, indeed 

in the world. Tom's Creek supports native trout, 

provides recreational joy and supplies fresh water 

not just to our rural community, but to downstream 

hamlets and the Borough of Fairfield. Contrast 

please pristine Tom 1 s Creek, with Miney's Branch 

which runs a sickly green, and we have plenty of 

photos to support that. 

Number seven. Our rural community is 

blessed with four beautiful wetlands all at the base 

of Pine Hill. Surface waters starting at the peak 

of Pine Hill ensure that this critical and unique 

environment will be protected. The Adams County 

Comprehensive Planning Commission approved by 

Hamiltonban Township Supervisors placed Pine Hill 

squarely in its specially protected watershed. 

These words have meaning. We should celebrate the 

wisdom of the Adams County planners. 

understood these words. 

They 

Number six. We have friends. 

efforts to protect and preserve the natural 

Our 
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resources and scenic and historic values are 

supported by the American Battlefield Trust, the 

Sierra Club, Historic Gettysburg Adams County, Trout 

Unlimited, Journey Through Hollowed Grounds, the 

upper Potomac River Keeper, thank you, and friends 

of Tom's Creek. And on top of that we have very 

exciting opportunities to make new friends with the 

arrival of Orbus, the new ownership of Liberty 

Mountain Resort, and the Monterey Pass Battlefield 

Park. And Monterey historic district. 

Number five. Pine Hill is surrounded 

by important historical resources. Including the 

July Four to Five Civil War retreat path. Did you 

know that it also was the site of the great wagon 

road and an abandoned cooper mine, which is likely 

home to the tri-colored bat? The Pennsylvania 

Historic and Museum office recommended an 

archeological review. And despite SGI's denial that 

federal historic preservation loss do not apply 

here, they are wrong. We can celebrate that the 

U.S. Department of Environmental Protection makes it 

clear that NPDES authority delegated to Pennsylvania 

and other states must comply with the national 

historic preservation loss, including compliance 

with section 106 review. 
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Number four. And this is the great 

news I think for the day for me. There's no 

specific order by the way to these important points. 

The market for fossil fuel products, such as asphalt 

shingles is waning. 

but very surely. 

Our country is greening, slowly 

Number three. Ambient air pollution 

as a result of blasting and grinding green stone 

which contains naturally occurring asbestos and 

other airborne toxic particulates such as silica are 

finally being recognized as dangerous to health. 

That's great news. No more undisclosed settlements 

that bury the truth. Understanding the danger will 

bring us closer to eliminating that danger. And 

will heal the community which has borne a tremendous 

burden of silence for decades. 

32 

Number two. SGI's reclamation or lack 

or reclamation. It's in plain view. We as a 

community should celebrate Google Earth. We finally 

have transparency. And that's something our 

community should celebrate. 

And then finally and perhaps the most 

important reason for hope, the law is on our side. 

We ask only that PADEP give meaning to the words 

that protect our environment. 
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I'm not going to take up time this 

evening to give you those laws I'll do that in my 

written submission. But I respectfully submit all 

of these comments to you and I'm very grateful for 

this opportunity to speak before my community, a 

community I've come to love very dearly. Thank you. 
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MR. WATSON: Good evening. My name is 

Matthew Ray Watson, M-A-T-T-H-E-W, R-A-Y, 

W-A-T-S-0-N. I live at 11237 Furnace Road. I'm 

about 700 feet from SGI. I've lived on Furnace Road 

my entire life and I work at SGI. Now during the 

July meeting, there was some talk about the history 

of the local area. The Watson name was mentioned, 

so I feel obligated to say a few words and make very 

clear what our opinion is on this matter. 

My family has been in the Snyder 

Hollow area, Gum Springs road, Furnace Road since 

1820. Now I can only speculate that it was both the 

solitude and privacy of the area at that time that 

my family fell in love with. 

However, those days are gone and we 

had the surge of residents come in the 1920s from 

Baltimore and Washington. And for summer homes, 

weekend getaways, the quiet mountain lifestyle kind 

of perished with my ancestors. So we've been a 
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little of everything through the decades, 

physicians, surgeons, mostly we were farmers. As I 

stated, I work at SGI and this is still our home. 

It 1 s not a weekend getaway or a summer cottage, it's 

our home. Our original property was a farm off Gum 

Springs Road. Unfortunately someone burned the 

house down in the 1960s and we still had a cabin at 

Snyder Hollow and unfortunately someone burned that 

to the ground about 10 years ago. 

So our history as far as old 

structures and properties is disappearing. But we 

are still here. After 199 years it's still our 

home. It's where I live with my wife and daughters, 

my parents are still on Furnace Road, as well as 

several aunts and uncles. And like a lot of people, 

love it here. We don't want to leave nor do we plan 

to leave. We built our house on family land and 

hope to be able to retire someday and eventually 

pass it along to our daughters. 

But right now I get up and go to work 

every day with a great group of people, we work 

hard. We go above and beyond what's required. 

We're committed to doing things right, and we try to 

make the neighbors happy. But you know as well as I 

do that you can't everybody happy but we never stop 
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trying. And I share the same love with Tom's Creek 

that everyone else does. 

the old farm property. 

The stream goes through 

It's where I caught my first 

fish as a very young boy. 

I still fish today. 

And really the only place 

But SGI does a great job protecting 

Tom's Creek and with water quality in general. 

ask that you approve the permit. 

So I 

I simply want to be afforded the same 

opportunities that generations before me were 

afforded. I want to get up in the morning, go to 

work and provide a good life for my family and I. 

I'm not asking for a handout, I want to earn it. 

And someday I'd love to have a weekend getaway of my 

own. But this area is my home and will always be 

home. 

35 

And I read something in the Gettysburg 

Times, and if I could just expand on that. We can 

have clean air and we can have clean water and we 

can have industry. All it takes is work. And we're 

all ready to keep working. And it shouldn't matter 

who's been here longer or who is closer or who was 

here first. Nobody's opinion should be more 

important than anyone else. What should matter and 

what should be considered is how SGI has responded 
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to the comments and concerns. What you all see 

during your inspections and what SGI's record has 

been. So if you review all of that, I'm sure the 

truth will be very clear. 

please approve the permit. 

Again, I ask that you 

MS. YOUNG: Hi. My name is Mona 

Young. That's M-0-N-A, Y-0-U-N-G. My husband and I 

moved to the area 30 years ago. And being out in 

the country away from the rough and grime of the 

city was what we liked. If we want to go to the 

city, we'd just pick up and go. But what I really 

find rich about some of the comments that I've heard 

is since the meeting last July, our property is 

starting to look like a grit bin. 

We live a couple miles - few miles 

downstream from SGI and just this past weekend with 

the photographs that I took it was just unimaginable 

at the green grit that is piling up on our property. 

It has shifted the stream bed 8 to 10 feet from one 

side. And it's eroding the property right behind 

our house the same amount it took out. So we have 

no level bank, you can't even set a chair down there 

anymore. And when I first started this process, it 

was January 2, 2010. 

We noticed we had a lot of heavy rain. 
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I think if I'm remembering correctly it was like 

seven to nine inches of rain. And we had issues of 

the stream, it just blew up. And it was running as 

green as a gourd. And I told them I was going to -

I said I'll be right back. So I left my house and I 

went straight up the mountain. And as I drove past 

the settling pond, it was kind of funny how it was 

empty. Now I know a few days prior to that it was 

level full. It was at the top. It was sludgy. The 

whole area around this pond was nasty with sludge, 

grit, there was no grooming. No dressing up of any 

area. So I kind of find it ironic how we get seven 

to nine inches rain how that pond goes empty. 

The water behind our house ran green 

for three-and-a-half weeks before it started 

settling down. On January 3rd was when I made my 

first phone call to DEP. No response. I kept 

calling, no responses. I kept calling, still no 

responses. And then finally I guess they probably 

got tired of hearing my voice on the voicemail 

because someone finally showed up at the end of 

March. And then in a letter, they were thanking me 

about contacting them on April the 8th. And I'm 

thinking well, it's kind of funny because I started 

my process out on January 3rd. 
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And they took samples of the water 

behind the house but the water was low. At that 

time it was flowing clear. And when I asked him 

what he was checking, he said he was checking the 

flocculant level. Well, probably he should have 

checked this flocculant level on January 3rd or at 

least within a week of that, because he probably 

would have really been surprised. And then that 

just - it just wasn't flying. I just had this 

concern. So after he left, I continued to call DEP 

and a supervisor showed up. 

So I wanted to show him the 

photographs I have of all the damage of the property 

and when we were flooded out. And we Shop-Vac'd 

green grit out of our boat house. Our barn was full 

of green grit. And he informed me that he wasn't 

there to see that, he was just there to humor me. 

So I would say in two different 

areas we have a big problem. We have a problem with 

the inspection processes through DEP, but a bigger 

problem from SGI. 

At that time when I started the 

process it was ISP. But I can tell you since this 

meeting last year, we have become inundated with 

grit, sludge. It is moving everything. We haven't 
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had aquatic life in that creek in years. We used to 

have trout. We used to have some crayfish. We've 

had schools of goldfish. We had a couple of 

muskrats that lived down there. And they frequented 

the area all the time. The one portion of the 

stream right behind our house, it was waist deep, 

that was their swimming hole. Well, we haven't seen 

anything alive down there in years. 

You'll go down and you'll see where 

we've lost four foot of depth behind our house. 

We're losing a lot of volume. It's spreading out 

from the stream and we are not in a flood plain 

because Harrisburg came down with their maps and we 

had to have that proven just so we could build our 

boathouse down in our meadow. And since then, with 

the space that we've lost in the stream, it's 

spreading out. There is a bridge that goes back the 

lane that serviced an l800's stone house. 

There's been so much deposition there 

of grit and everything that flows with the grit. 

has now shifted that whole stream over to the road 

above the bridge. So you know what? Within the 

next few years, if this keeps up, there's not even 

going to be a road there to support the bridge 

because it has eaten away so much of that. 
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When this flocculant is dumped in the 

water, it just makes the particles that much 

heavier. It collects to the particles in hopes that 

the particles float down to the bottom. Well, they 

are floating down to the bottom. If you have a 

slight hump on a level stream bed, it's going to 

start collecting at that hump. And it's picked its 

places. And that was a nice place. 

40 

And there's another thing that we were 

curious about, because of all the flocculant that 

gets dumped in the water and what's supposed to help 

the settlement. We haven't heard anything about any 

reports that tell us, you know, is this a 

flocculant, is it something that can make someone 

sick? There's been no studies. You know, it's 

settling in the bottom of the stream, well something 

is feeding our water tables. 

is going down through that. 

So obviously the water 

There's a lot of us 

down that stream that have wells. You know, how do 

we know that this hasn't infiltrated our well water? 

How do we know that we're not going to create - or 

come up with issues down the road from this? 

There's just a lot of things that need 

to be taken care of. And a lot of issues and a lot 

of nice little plans and pictures we've been seeing. 
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But you know what? Nobody has stopped by our house 

to say hey, is there anything we can do to help you, 

can we see what the problem is? And then, you know, 

I knew from 2010 up until now, I knew one day that 

we would have proof that that settling pond is being 

dumped in the stream, and you know what? We got it. 

And that was the best part of it all. We have it. 

I knew in 2010. There's an old 

saying, when the cat is away, the mice will play. 

Well, guess what? They were having a field day that 

day. And it's collecting behind our house. I'm 

sure its collecting down the stream from behind our 

house. But that is part of our landscape. That is 

what we see when we walk out on our deck every day. 

That's what we see when we walk out down in our 

meadow to our boathouse. We have the stream, that's 

part of our life. And again, it's turning into a 

grit bit, and nobody cares. 
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So this is something that if it's just 

affecting us, you know it's affecting everybody else 

following that stream bed. And it's not something 

that's greed to me, because a lot of people I'm sure 

have seen you or have seen me working at Walmart, 

that's just my part-time have fun job. My actual 

job is I work for Loudoun County Government. I'm an 
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erosion and settlement control engineer. And I'm 

also a certified inspector for DEP - or DEQ, 

Department of Environmental Quality for Virginia. 

So we do a lot of the DEQ inspections 

with our mining sources there. So none of this is 

greed to me. And when I receive a letter basically 

telling me I'm an idiot and I don't know what I'm 

talking about, and people show up and say hey we're 

here just to humor you, then I'd say there's a 

problem. Because obviously they're not there to 

help anybody else. Thank you. 

MR. WALLS: My name is Brent Walls, 

B-R-E-N-T, W-A-L-L-S. I'm the Upper Potomac 

riverkeeper for Potomac Riverkeeper Network. Tom's 

Creek and the Miney's Branch merge and flow into 

Monocacy, which flows into the Potomac River. My 

organization is charged with protecting the Potomac 

River and all its tributaries and streams from 

degradation. 

I've been working with the community 

here for a couple of years now. And we have just 

started late last year developing a monitoring 

program to really see the impacts that SGI has on 

the Miney's Branch. And as you heard from Mona just 

now, it's not just a recent issue, it's been a long 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

42 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

time of an issue. Miney's Branch is degraded. The 

stream bed is mucked full of grit. It runs green 

most of the time. And we have developed a 

monitoring program to do a chemical analysis and an 

observational analysis above and below the discharge 

of SGT. 

So what we have seen in the last six 

months is an up and down swing of turbidity flowing 

down Miney's Branch just downstream from the 

discharge of the settlement ponds. 

And in fact three days before 

Thanksgiving last year, I was alerted to that the 

stream was running particularly heavy and green and 

cloudy, and so I decided to drive up and check it 

out for myself. I noticed that SGI was dewatering 

their pond. They had a pump running. And they were 

discharging a high volume of water from the 

settlement ponds into Miney's Branch. And just 

downstream at the Sportsman's club area, Miney's 

Branch was thick and green. That was an obvious and 

visual disturbance and degradation to Miney's 

Branch. 

43 

I alerted DEP. They went out two days 

later. And at that time SGI had turned off their 

pumps. However, the DEP inspector was assured by 
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SGI that they were well within their limits of 30 

milligrams per liter of total suspended solids. 

Well, I say to you DEP that that's not good enough. 

It's obvious that the limits that are used for 

Miney's Branch and for the SGI ponds is technology 

based, and that should not be. They should be a 

water quality based. Miney's Branch is, above the 

discharge, is running clear, but below it is not. 

It is a visible degradation. Which in fact is a 

violation of the state pollution control laws, its 

narrative laws. 

There's two ways of showing the 

degradation to a stream. Numerical, which is their 

limits in their permit, and there's narrative. 

Anything that has odor, visible change, color, and 

so on and so forth to the stream is considered a 

violation of the narrative pollution control laws. 

So I'm saying to you, DEP, that this needs to 

change. That you need to investigate developing 

water quality based effluent limits. You need to 

include turbidity as a measure. And that all of 

this needs to be conducted and assessed before this 

expansion goes forward. Because what this tells me 

is that SGI has a capacity problem with their ponds. 

That their ponds do not have the 
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ability to adequately clean the sediment that's 

flowing into there before it goes into Miney's 

Branch. This also tells me that the system of 
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stormwater ponds throughout SGI is also inadequate 

and the fear here as we are increasing in rain and 

storm events growing every single year, that that 

capacity, that lack of ability to manage their 

stormwater, is going to inundate Tom's Creek. That 

the pumps that they are saying are going to be used 

to pump the stormwater ponds for another expansion 

into the existing pond system, those could fail. 

And we will have the green turbid water flowing into 

Tom's Creek, which is a high quality stream. 

state designated high quality stream. 

It's a 

And I think - I'm asking DEP to make 

sure that SGI has adequate stormwater management, 

adequate pond capacity, and DEP needs to develop 

water quality based effluent limits before anymore 

expansion is approved. And I think this is 

necessary. We don't want to trade one water quality 

system tor another. And I think that - well, that's 

pretty much all I have to say. Thank you. 

MR. REPETZ: Next, please. 

MR. BROWNING: Buck Browning, B-U-C-K, 

B-R-0-W-N-I-N-G. I'm the director of the Fort 
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Ritchie Community Center. And there are people I 

respect greatly on both sides of this issue I'm 

finding out tonight. And really all I - all I'm 

here to say or acknowledge is SGI has been a 

corporate partner with the Community Center. And 

the investments and sponsorships like from last year 

and really about three years going back. 

They have sponsored our Halloween 

party, our Easter egg hunt. The funds that SGI has 

donated have helped us be able to serve kids in 

summer, regardless of whether or not they can pay 

for summer camp. So those things are important. 

So what I'm talking about is more 

social far more than the environment. And just 

sitting here listening I just felt it was necessary 

to at least acknowledge that SGI has been helping 

the Community Center and helping our kids. 

that's all. 

So 

MRS. YOUNG: Hi. My name is Audrey 

Young, A-U-D-R-E-Y. I'm a homeowner in Blue Ridge 

Summit and I grew up in Blue Ridge Summit. And I'm 

raising three children and have a husband up in Blue 

Ridge Summit. I live on Monterey Lane. 

And I have a question. But I'm first 

going to tell you why I have this question. I'm 
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concerned not just about the water, I'm just as much 

of a worrier as anybody else. I am worried about 

the trees and the water and everything else. 

I have two members of my family that 

are being treated by Hopkins right now. We live in 

a 1800s 1800s built old house up here and we are 

very close to the mine. And we get dust all over 

our porch, green scary dust, and it has to be 

brushed off regularly. I used to before we got rid 

of our plastic white siding and got some new siding. 

I have to wash the siding with a hose and my broom 

to make it - to take all the stuff off of it. And 

we did it several times this summer. But the 

concern is I have two family members now being 

treated by the top lung specialists in the country 

through a panel of doctors at Hopkins for terminal 

lung disease. 

One is my child and one is my spouse. 

And my question to you, because I've heard you say 

that you were doing air testing just at that site at 

the entrance to the site. My question is, is the 

air testing being done down wind of the site or up 

wind of the site. Is that testing that you did done 

up wind of the site or down wind of the site? 

have very serious concerns about the air we're 

I 
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breathing and for legitimate reasons. 

Thank you and I appreciate everybody 

coming today and sharing what they have to say. 

MR. FROST: Hello. My name is 

Clifford Frost, C-L-I-F-F-0-R-D, F-R-0-S-T. 

Obviously as a bit of background, I have a 

bachelor's degree in statistics and a master's 

degree in biostatistics and epidemiology from the 

University of California Berkeley. And I chose to 

follow Audrey's remarks because there's a very 

serious issue. The supposed air tests that happened 

have some detail and studied a great deal. 

three basic comments. 

I have 

The first one is that SGI used 

inappropriate testing methodology for the 

asbestiform fibers. The air sampling that they did 

at 10 locations for eight days, at best covered one 

ten trillionth of the sites air column. In other 

words there's almost no way that that testing 

produced anything meaningful. Other than the fact 

they did discover some asbestiform fibers by some 

miracle. The only way that those tests - that 

testing could generalize is if you would assume the 

column of dust was absolutely uniformly distributed 

throughout the air column. 
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Furthermore, they didn't use any 

anemometers on their testing gear. They have no 

information about the wind patterns at the mine site 

except for the prevailing winds which were measured 

miles away. Taken together, that means that was a 

complete waste and means nothing for the community's 

health. It might be that there wasn't anything in 

the air, but one tenth trillionth of that air was 

measured. 

The second point about this is that a 

one time sample, even though it were a few days, is 

also inappropriate to the problem. Even if this one 

sample had been perfect, it would not apply to the 

ongoing nature of the issue. SGI's procedures 

manual specifies that their geologists look for 

actinolite and mark it so they can avoid disturbing 

it. This is very good. It's an important step. 

But it's unlikely to be perfect. 

that SGI is aware of the danger. 

good. 

This does prove 

And that's also 

A much more appropriate method would 

be to go through testing each new batch of debris 

after blasting or crushing or any other process that 

could release asbestiform fibers. When asbestiform 

fibers are found in the debris, the debris should be 
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treated as toxic waste before much of it gets in the 

atmosphere, not to mention before the debris is used 

as road grout. 

is clear. 

That's that point. I hope that it 
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The second point is SGI is not testing 

the health of the streams. This relates to what 

Brent was saying. The goal we all share, I believe 

SGI and its employees share this goal as well, is to 

keep our streams and rivers clear and in good 

health. It's good that SGI sometimes does its 

discharges for various heavy metals and other 

chemical pollutants, but his is not sufficient. 

It's indirect and it's inconclusive. Since we all 

care about the ongoing health of the streams, one 

appropriate inexpensive measurement would be to do 

regular macroinvertebrate counts in a few places on 

a regular basis. DEP should do this testing 

upstream and downstream of every place SGI 

discharges, both for Tom's Creek and the Miney's 

Branch. 

Just as important, DEP should test 

upstream and downstream of every place SGI disturbs 

the runoff before it goes into Tom's Creek. These 

results should be published and action immediately 

taken to correct problems before they become severe. 
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There should be baseline test done before any 

disturbance of Pine Hill. All testing has to be 

done by people independent of SGI. That's not 

accusing SGI of anything. Independence is important 

so that SGI is protected and the public believes the 

results. 

My third point is why should SGI ever 

have to dump into Tom's Creek? Why not get a big 

enough pump or pumps to make sure it never has to do 

this. Engineers tell me these pumps are common and 

made nearby and could be deployed. The cost of the 

measures I'm suggesting here would very slightly 

reduce the profit SGI can make, but that has to be 

balanced against the cost to the community of not 

taking these steps, which could be enormous and 

irreversible. Thank you. 

MR. POULSON: Hi. My name is Charlie 

Poulson, P-O-U-L-S-0-N. I live in Carroll Valley, 

but I've lived in the Fairfield area for the last 50 

years. 

years. 

I retired from SGI last December after 43 

I worked as a quarry supervisor for most of 

my career. SGI has given me a rewarding career and 

it's allowed me to provide for my family and my two 

children. I was able to send both of my children to 

college and I was able to retire at 62 years old. 
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the permit. 

I'm here today to express favor for 

It's important to me to let the local 

public know that SGI does stand by its commitment to 

protect the environment. I know this because I saw 

it and I lived it while I was employed. I was 

involved with many projects with the environment as 

a priority, whether it was making sure proper 

environmental controls were in place before and 

after any project. Or communicating with our local 

residents about blasting. 

I truly believe that SGI has a good 

environmental steward, taken into account the very 

best interests for its employees and local 

residents. 

I've seen the changes that have 

happened to the community in the last 50 years. And 

this expansion is just another change. However this 

one will benefit the community. This expansion will 

help local residents keep the property taxes low and 

will provide job security for the people currently 

employed at SGI. Thank you. 
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MS. ANDES: My name is Jennifer Andes. 

It's J-E-N-N-I-F-E-R, Andes, A-N-D-E-S. These are 

my children, Kenneth and Brooke. My family's 

property is located at 201 Gum Springs Road, 
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directly across from the proposed mining expansion. 

There are a lot of grievance for which we, the 

community, are concerned about SGI's mining 

practices. Issues that pose threats to our homes, 

our water, our history, our wildlife, our roads, our 

lands. My opposition encompasses each of these, but 

also has a lot to do with legacy. 
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My family has owned property along Gum 

Springs Road for over 50 years. 

purchased the land in his youth. 

My dad, Ken Shank, 

He worked the 

land. He built on it. He improved it over time. 

He loved that land. He found a sense of peace and 

purpose there. He was a good man, honest and hard 

working. And he wanted to share his land - he has 

passed away, if I didn't mention that, four years 

ago. He wanted to share his land and the fruits of 

his hard work a lifetime of work with his children 

and grandchildren who stand here before you. 

We have each experienced a deep sense 

of fear when exposed to an SGI blast. 

literally shakes. We feel the blast. 

The house 

We feel 

unsafe. No reassurance from SGI that the blasts are 

being tracked by seismograph or that they are within 

acceptable limits can help to calm a child's fear or 

my own for that matter. We also hear and see the 
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effects of the mining daily on the surface of the 

land and in the water of Tom's Creek which runs 

through our property. 

The way in which SGI conducts its 

mining operation and purposes to expand that 

operation onto Pine Hill affects our ability to 

enjoy our own property. Our family is strongly 

opposed to the expansion of the mining operation. 

Our community is coming together here again tonight 

and DEP is hearing our voices. We wish to protect 

our land and resources. Collectively yours, mine, 

and ours. It will be here after each of us pass, 

but by our decisions and our actions we will leave 

it either pure or forever scarred from mining. 

Thank you very much for hearing us again tonight. 

MR. KELLETT: Good evening. My name 

is Paul Kellet. It's P-A-U-L, K-E-L-L-E-T-T. I'm 

going to speak briefly about the history of this 

because I realize that people rant about logging, 

but they still use toilet paper. And so somewhere 

·we have to mine. And that's true. But the history 

of this project is sort of interesting. 
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Back in the early 2000s, this belonged 

Glatfelter Tree Farm, this parcel. Then there was 

it was put up for sale and that - we passed a bond 
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referendum here in Adams County, $10,000,000 to 

protect our water. A lot of that money was used to 

purchase this tract and its entirety. It was -

although there was federal money through Forest and 

DCNR money, somehow when the deeds were transferred, 

the county money was used entirely to purchase this 

tract. And we've passed that bond referendum with 

over three quarters of the vote in the county. 

stood at the polls all day encouraging people. 

I 

We were led to believe when this land 

was purchased that it would be transferred into 

Michaux, strictly a forest, and be preserved. But 

somehow this transfer occurred to - there's a land 

swap then. They proposed a land swap which couldn't 

have happened if it was a true partnership with the 

federal funds or the DCNR funds. We couldn't have 

swapped this land for land that was completely 

landlocked in Michaux State Forest. We couldn't 

have done it. But since it was purchased with 

county funds, it was swapped away. And it was 

swapped for reasonably equivalent acreage, but as a 

realtor I can tell you that it was not equivalent 

value as the law requires. 
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There was no question. 

assessment was incredibly different. 

It was the tax 

It was closer 
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to one million versus one hundred thousand in land 

value. Now when that happened, I was at the County 

Commissioners and I urged them not to swap the land 

and they said oh, it's all right. And I asked them 

where the appraisals were. We never were given 

copies of appraisals. The Commissioners told me -

all three of them told me that. 

Then I said well at least we have 

Hamiltonban Township. Hamiltonban Township at that 

time had encouraged us to pass a bond referendum to 

protect our water. And they said this is important, 

developers are looking at these tracts, we're 

concerned about this. And they encouraged their 

voters to pass this bond referendum to protect this 

land. Then they --- somehow they were told that 

Tom's Creek would never be recipient of discharge. 

So the citizens in this room who are all along Tom's 

Creek were not given standing at that zoning 

hearing. Not one person in this room was given 

standing at that zoning hearing because they were 

not going to be impacted by this zoning change. 

one person. I know because I was there. 

Now, then I was on Adams County 

Watershed. We petitioned to have the designation 

changed out of Tom's Creek from high quality to 
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exceptional value. We were told in front of the 

Hamiltonban Township, well, of course SGI is going 

to discharge into Tom's Creek. 

Now the goal post have continually 

moved for us. The information has continually 

changed on this. And I asked when there's somebody 

from environmental justice, where is the justice for 

the taxpayers of Adams County who voted 

overwhelmingly to purchase this land with our tax 

dollars? We voted in an economic down turn to 

preserve the water of Adams County. 

And even if you have these supposed 

protections by SGI, I ask when they're pumping out 

into Miney's Branch and they say it's less than the 

30 milligrams per liter, are they testing of that, 

and have they shown you the results of that test, or 

are they just speculating on that? Because I would 

say where are the test results? You can say that 

you're keeping below the limits, but if you're 

getting all sorts of - and I own a property on 

Miney's Branch. I have free dust there, too. 

So how do you - we know that this is 

true? We were told all along and we voted and we 

paid with our money to protect this land. And now 

we are looking at this and the - I was told in 
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Hamiltonban that they never discharge into Tom's 

Creek. At that zoning hearing, they said we were 

not going to discharge. Now they're saying they are 

going to discharge. And as a Township Supervisor in 

Freedom Township, I say, when do we ask that the 

truth be told to us as government. 

Can you afford to check every number 

that they're giving you or do you ask at some point 

that people be held accountable to be telling the 

truth at such a hearing as this. And I question how 

I could tell you that I collected data from eight 

days last year and Pennsylvania's a desert. Do you 

really want to believe me and is that good data that 

they're giving you? Because they're - I can choose 

eight days last year that Pennsylvania's a desert. 

Thank you. 

MR. SWOPE: My name is Dave Swope, 

0-A-V-E, S-W-0-P-E. I want to thank you for the 

opportunity to review this recreational history on 

Tom 1 s Creek. As an avid trout fisherman, 

Pennsylvania Fish and Boat Commission corporative 

nursery manager at the local high school, also I'm a 

long time Pennsylvania Fish and Boat Commission 

stocking coordinator of the 84 trout streams in 

Adams County. Past President of the Adams County 
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Federation of Sportsman's clubs, past President four 

terms at Adams County Trout Unlimited, past 

President of McSherrystown Fish and Game. I've been 

one of the leaders in stream restoration projects 

throughout Adams County. 

So my interest lies in the protection 

of the waterways. Some of us here today realize 

that many types of pollution rests on our cold water 

species, the trout. 

poor water quality. 

Trout are very susceptible to 

Many can look at a trout in 

poor water quality as a miner views a canary in the 

mines when problems exist. 

cannot withstand pollution. 

Trout and aquatic life 

Since 1975 the trout 

nursery at the Fairfield High School raised 4,500 

trout annually and some of those trout have been 

stocked in Tom's Creek. These trout are raised as 

fingerlings to adults from July until May through 

the FFA program through the school. 

Tom's Creek receives two more 

stockings from other sportsman's organizations along 

with the Pennsylvania Fish and Boat Commission who 

stock the stream pre-season and end-season. 

This outdoor recreational activity 

draws many fishing enthusiasts to Tom's Creek. 

Tom's Creek receives another 300 trout from the 
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Fairfield cooperative nursery for their annual 

fishing derby for kids at the Carroll Valley Park. 

All together these stockings reveal that Tom's Creek 

receives over 2,000 trout. It's important to 

recognize how a stream looks, how it reacts, how it 

behaves, and the changes. It can be a very complex 

balance of physical elements. 

The plans to expand the mining would 

produce more risks and possibly increase the 

discharge of suspended solids into Tom's Creek. 

SGI, their DMR discharge monitoring reports show 

As 

long range compliance with total suspended solids, 

but these reports historically show noncompliance. 

One would argue from the point alone that SGI's 

expansion plan should not be permitted. 

Thank you. 
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MR. DULL: My name is Jeffrey Dull, J-

E-F-F-R-E-Y, D-U-L-L. I live on Monterey Lane. I 

read as I'm sure many of you had a 180 page SGI 

response to public comments received from the July 

23rd, 2018 public meeting. The entire response was 

enlightening and I'm highly interested in all that 

was presented. But I'm restricting my comments 

tonight to part five, sections one through three, 

which deals with truck traffic, and part seven, 
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sections one through five, dealing with asbestos. 

I want to begin by applauding SGI on 

their efforts to redirect quarry-related truck 

traffic to a road they promised to build directly to 

PA route 16 sometime in the future. I believe this 

is a wonderful idea, but I wondered whether it will 

happen. Ever since I've lived on Monterey Lane, and 

long before I came, there's been this enduring myth 

of a great road that will cure the trucking blight. 

To date no promised road has been built. 

Part five, section one of SGI 1 s 

response states that the modifications to the 

Charmian facility operations purposed is part of 

this northern tract quarry permit application are 

not intended to increase production capacity at the 

Charmian facility nor result in increased truck 

traffic. It also says construction and mining 

equipment deliveries and shipments will all continue 

to be routed through SGI's internal haul roads and 

ultimately utilizing existing site entrances on Old 

Waynesboro Road. To me this says the trucking 

routes will not change without a road. 

SGI is nearing completion on a 

separate project to construct a new access road 

connecting the Charmian facility directly to State 
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Route 16. Thereby allowing most trucks to bypass 

and avoid Old Waynesboro Road and other local roads. 

If the Route 16 access road project remains on 

track, SGI is planning to complete a new access road 

directly connected to route 16 before the winter of 

2019/2020. That is less than a year from now. 

In part five section two, SGI is 

working with PennDOT to obtain approval on the 

PennDOT highway occupancy permit in hopes to have a 

final PennDOT permit within six months. In part 

five, section three, the response states that SGI 

help Hamiltonban Township repave a 2,000 foot 

section of the Old Waynesboro Road, and that was 

great. But according to idea-points.com, a study by 

the U.S. General Accounting Office determined the 

road damage caused by a single 18 wheeler was 

equivalent to the damage caused by 9,600 cars. 

Maybe SGI owes Hamiltonban a little more than 2,000 

feet of paving. 

SGI states in the same section that 

the part of the Old Waynesboro Road that the trucks 

travel on from their entrance to Route 16 through 

Hamiltonban Township is two miles long. What about 

the maintenance on the majority of the road used. 

Incidentally there is no mention involving 
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Washington Township, which Charmian and Monterey 

Lane, which handles just as much heavy truck traffic 

if not more than the segment in Hamiltonban 

Township, Monterey Lane has been paved twice since 

I've lived here and it is currently developing 

potholes at the intersection of Monterey and 

Charmian. 

Words like intended and nearing and 

most, if, anticipate, hopes and other conditional 

words and phrases used throughout the 180 pages of 

this document in my mind constitute vague promises 

at best. If the road is built, it will divert truck 

traffic from residential areas. But on Monterey 

Lane in Charmian, the 80 percent that they talk 

about probably won't be so. It will probably only 

be 50 percent because all of the heavy trucks will 

still come back, even though the light ones will be 

able to use this future road. 

If the state permit for entry onto 

Route 16 has not been issued yet, but SGI hopes it 

will be issued in the next six months, how can this 

project be completed by the end of the year as the 

implied promise states? As an example of this, as 

many of us have seen in Emmitsburg, a bridge 

replacement project that was started in the fall of 
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2016 has not been completed to date. 

how long it takes to do these roads. 

No one knows 

Although I agree with the plan that 

SGI proposes, I see no way of enforcing it and no 

alternative proposed for either current mitigation 

of the truck problem or mitigation of the 

destructive and dangerous trucking situation that 

currently exist if this plan falls through. I would 

suggest that the building of this road be made a 

condition of approval for the permit of Pine Hill 

mining operation. No road, no permit. 

through five. 

Now, on to part, seven sections one 

SGI takes precautions against mining 

and processing actinolite, this of course is a very 

nasty form of asbestos. If I'm reading this 

correctly, I want to recognize that SGI has 

acknowledged that they have found actinolite in some 

core samples. This segment is found in part seven 

section three subsection B. And it's planning 

again, a qualifying action word, and talking about 

how - how to evade this in part seven section three 

subsection C. 

If you take the time to read part 

seven, it's about five pages long, you might be 

amazed that SGI or those agencies they hire seem to 
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be doing all the testing here. It seems odd to me. 

Why doesn't PADEP do the testing? 

Well, my wife and I were curious about 

this and issues of trust. So we took a trip to the 

Cambria Office in Ebensburg PA and spent an 

entertaining four hours going through documentation 

on SGI and its predecessors. There were thousands 

upon thousands of pages of information, inspection, 

complaints, news articles, and of greatest interest, 

violation reports. There were a number of these 

violation reports as one would expect from a large 

company dealing in potentially toxic materials. 

I'm sure that SGI has an explanation 

for what I'm about to point out, just as they did 

for every question asked at the last meeting. But 

let's look at the examples anyway. Violation ID 

1825511 labeled air quality. This violation was a 

failure to prevent fugitive particulate matter from 

passing outside a person's property. The fine was 

$4,500. SGI complied and the case was closed. 

Another ID number 2257195, blasting. Failure to 

maintain a complete record for each blast. SGI 

complied, no fine was assessed and the case was 

closed. 

ID number 217335, air quality. 
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Failure to take reasonable actions to prevent 

particulate matter from becoming airborne. The fine 

was $1,125. This one had a civil penalty of 

$10,700. SGI complied and the case was closed. ID 

number 2317327, air quality. Penalty $1,125, 

complied, case closed. ID 2333195, another blasting 

violation, no penalty assessed, case closed. ID 

2764265 discharging water that does not meet water 

quality standards. This one says that SGI complied 

and the case was closed. The penalty assessed was 

$1,200. The amount due was $1,200. But there was a 

zero on the line that says total amount collected. 

I don't understand all these things. 

I just read the papers. My point here is not that 

there are violations but how can I trust a 

corporation that's allowed to police itself when an 

inspection does find fault, the penalty in dollars 

is laughable or nonexistent. Then if SGI complies, 

all is well and the case is closed. That's a little 

bit like being pulled over by an officer for a 

speeding violation. The officer asks you how fast 

you were going, explains what the fine might be if 

you had to pay it, and then says everything is all 

right if you slow down. 

this means. 

I'm not quite sure what 
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So again, what is the point? The 

point is that SGis operation should be monitored 

very closely by DEP. PADEP should have a third 

party or themselves conducting testing according to 

generally accepted sampling protocol and ASTN 

standards, surface water monitoring parameters 

should now include asbestos and a relook at the 

acceptable levels of copper. Rigid dust control 

measures and monitoring should be part of the 

approved permit. 
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SGI has plenty of money and lawyers to 

explain away every point of contention and question 

we have as is witnessed in their 180 page response 

to DEP. We have nothing but DEP to defend our 

rights to clean air, clean water, road quality and 

safety in the future of our children. I don't trust 

conditional promises. I want to see them in 

writing. And as part of the Pine Hill mining permit 

approval process, I believe that these should be 

included. 

Thank you. 

MS. DEVEER: My name is Sue deVeer. 

That's spelled small D-E, capital V, E-E-R. 

going to thank DEP and the large turnout of 

I'm 

community members here tonight for this meeting. 
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live at 700 Iron Springs Road in Fairfield. I told 

you before that I'm relatively new here and that I 

live in a house which contains a stone and log cabin 

that was here during the retreat of Robert E. Lee's 

troops after the battle of Gettysburg. 

Nine hundred feet of Tom's Creek flow 

through the front of our property. I love Tom's 

Creek and the huge trees and the wildlife here which 

the wetlands and the woodlands support. We have 

deer, fox, squirrels, fox squirrels with big red 

tails. And turkeys, kingfishers, grayhorned and 

barred and screech owls. And this week we came home 

to find a red shouldered hawk eating a Junco on the 

railing of our bridge that - so that red shouldered 

hawk figured out where the bird feeder was. 
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In the spring we have a wild rumpus of 

green frogs, wood frogs, gray tree frogs, toads and 

salamanders making music and tadpoles in the frog 

pond in front of our houses fed by I think one of 

the springs. I suspect it's an iron spring because 

the water is brown. It's great for tadpoles and 

crayfish. I'm very connected to this issue by the 

beauty aspect and by my connection to the wildlife. 

As I prepared to put together my comments for 

tonight, I sometimes felt buried by the wordy 
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documents and the data and the answers to the 

questions and the questions to the answers and the 

rebuttals until my eyes wanted to roll back in my 

head. But to me the values of clean water and 

healthy environment make it really important to 

persist. 

Helping community wide participation 

in community issues is important to me. I should 

have mentioned at the beginning, I'm one the 

officers of the Friends of Tom's Creek organization. 

I'm the secretary treasurer. 

say that. 

And I did forget to 
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In these days of rapid polarization, I 

would like to purpose that we here in this room, 

none of us need to be or to be seen as enemies. 

None of us need to be enemies. The values of clean 

water and a healthy environment, our families need 

those things. Our families need good jobs, a 

healthy economy, a healthy environment to thrive. 

And we can work together to make that happen beyond 

our differences of opinion. 

one friend mentioned earlier. 

It will take work as 

There are environmentalist here who 

work for the state. There are environmentalists 

here who work for the mine. And there are some who 
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organize to speak up for the water and citizens' 

rights in the Pennsylvania constitution which 

promise us the right to a clean environment. There 

are concerned citizens here who have to scoop out 

green dust grit when they clean their roof gutters 

because their homes are so close to the operation. 

There are environmentalist here who live further out 

yet have stressed in sleepless nights from the 24 

hour mine operations and the truck traffic. And 

some whose enjoyment of their meadow downstream from 

the mine who's been in perils and inundated by green 

grit. There are discouraged people here. 

And there are people here who have 

things to say and are nervous to speak up. 

that's really what I wanted to say tonight. 

And 

Is to 

speak up. That's what this microphone is for. 

Come, tell your story, ask your question, say your 

opinion. It's really important for us to keep 

talking and very importantly keep listening. Please 

come make your comments and please listen to your 

neighbors. 

I have some very specific requests 

that I want to put into DEF. And I'm just going to 

put them in my written comments. And thank you for 

your time. Come tell your story up here. 
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MR. WILLMAN: For the record my name 

is Todd Willman, T-0-D-D, W-I-L-L-M-A-N. I'm 

actually with the Manufacturers Association of 

Southcentral Pennsylvania. This evening I really 

cannot talk to the issues that we've heard about 

here regarding noise, roads, or water. The one 

thing that I and our association can do however is 

talk about manufacturing. 

I know it's a little hard to believe 

but just here in south central Pennsylvania, 

manufacturing supports 118,000 jobs both directly 

and indirectly. And contributes almost 17 billion, 

with ab, 17 billion dollars of goods and services 

to the national economy each year. One of those 

companies is SGI, whose employees spend their 

paychecks locally and who support the economic 

growth of this area, with a local payroll of almost 

13 million dollars. 

SGI was recognized by our association 

last year, presented with our community investor 

award for contributions that they made to the local 

communities. This award was pages in length. It 

was one of the longest nomination forms we have ever 

received from our members. And this application, 

this nomination, noted their support of such groups 
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as the Renfrew Institute, Blue Ridge Fire and EMS, 

The Penn Mar Youth League, Waynesboro's Hamilton 

Public Library, and many other civic and social 

organizations. 
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It's not that common for us to receive 

award nominations that are more than one page long. 

Very few companies will take the time to actually 

document and also to tout their accomplishments and 

achievements in their local communities. SGI stood 

out to us as a good supporter to their communities. 

And today they are actively involved with us in our 

apprenticeship and other training programs for 

employees to better develop their job skills and 

professional training. 

Among our 370 member companies, and 

another 110 companies that we interface with for 

their training and workforce development needs, it's 

difficult for us to find a company like SGI. 

that has their level of civic involvement and 

commitments and who also believes in providing 

company paid training to not only better their 

One 

employees work skills, but in turn deliver a greater 

economic impact and moral support to their local 

communities. 

Thank you. 
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MR. REPETZ: Anyone else, please? 

Ma'am? 

MS. ROGERS: Hi. I just want to bring 

this back to where I think we should be 

concentrating. 

Hamiltonban. 

Oh, Sherry Rogers and I live in 

The only thing that is going to 

prevent the expansion into that area which we're all 

concerned about of Pine Hill is if the SEJ is not 

sufficient. I know, I've worked as a bureaucrat. I 

know how you're trapped. And no matter how many sob 

stories you hear, it's not going to change the 

regulations. 

So I would like to take that up and 

explain that my reading of SGI's social and economic 

justification is very poor. There's a lot in there 

about what's feasible and what is not. And I 

thought about this word, and how does that come up 

so many times? And I finally realized what they 

mean by feasible is they mean profitable. So 

they're not really saying they can't put this new 

mine in a different place. They have - they're just 

saying they don't think it's feasible. It's 

probably going to make them more money if they tear 

down a mountain than if they opened up another 

quarry in their almost 1400 acres of land. 
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the community. 

So the economic argument is not for 

The economic argument that you're 

making is for their profit margin. And they are so 

sophisticated, yes, by giving money to the local 

organizations and everything because they're not 

from around here. They're from New Jersey. Their 

big company is in New York. They're owners - the 

daughter of one the owners just bought a $53 million 

apartment on Park Avenue. 
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So I'm glad to hear and see that there 

is an environmental justice person here because this 

is not a huge community. We can't afford high 

priced lawyers. And we can't fight them for clean 

air and clean water. And clean air and clean water 

is as important to the miners, it's more important 

to the miners, because they have to breathe it every 

day and it cannot be allowed to be ignored within 

the social and economic justification. 

Health is part of the social fabric. 

And water - clean water is essential to health. I 

would also like to put forward an idea that people 

might consider is that when you look at a stream, 

you can't look at a stream as a separate - just, you 

know, thing that goes from here to there. A stream 

is created by a watershed. You cannot separate it 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

from the watershed that feeds it. And I can see 

where SGI, if they do not - do not disrupt the 

watershed for Tom's Creek, the high quality portion 

of Tom's Creek which turns out to be quite small, 

and this is another one of those things those people 

in New Jersey do, is talked about how huge this 

watershed is when in fact it runs only from the 

basin to the bridge. 

If that watershed is protected and 

they stay back from what would be downhill water, 

then we will not have Tom's Creek polluted. And we 

will have jobs. It's SGI that's made this dichotomy 

that said oh, you know, if we don't have this 

particular thing then you won't, which might be more 

feasible which might be more profitable, than we're 

going to have to close down. And this makes workers 

very nervous and unhappy. And it makes us in the 

community very nervous and unhappy because we don't 

want that kind of blackmail used on us. 

So there were other things but I'm 

going to include all of those in my written 

comments. I think the health issue is very real. 

This type of asbestos is the kind - this actinolite, 

it has almost a coat on the end of it. 

into your lungs, it's not getting out. 

It's gets 

Recently 
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there's been publicity about black lung disease 

coming back up with miners in coal. And it turns 

out that's caused by silica. They're okay with the 

coal dust, but what they're having to do is cut 

through silica walls to get to the new seams. And 

when they do that, the silica is tearing up their 

lungs because it's like glass. 

is. 

That's what silica 

And so you're getting a lot of new 

black lung disease cases. And there are statistical 

- there have been studies of health outcomes around 

mines such as this. And the health issues decrease 

as you get farther from the mine. There's - you 

know, you - there's scientific proof this is not 

just somebody's opinion. 

The other thing I want to bring up 

though since I have the chance is that Hamiltonban 

Township only gave a conditional zoning to this 

project proof for expanding into the area which they 

felt the county had bought and which should not be 

exploited and should be really protected. 

And in that conditional zoning there 

are things like houses should not vibrate when the 

blasting goes off. And that water should not cross 

boundaries into other property, which to me includes 
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crossing into Tom's Creek. So I doubt that - I 

can't promise this would happen, but Hamiltonban 

Township has the right to actually rescind on that 

zoning if it's broken. And I think that should be 

taken into consideration as well. 

That's all I can remember. I didn't 

bring my notes. 

much. 

I was winging it. Thank you very 

MR. REPETZ: Anyone else? 

MR. GEESAMAN: I'm Jeffrey Geesaman, 

J-E-F-F-R-E-Y, G-E-E-S-A-M-A-N. I live at 11403 

Brookdale Drive, Waynesboro Pennsylvania. I am the 

Township Manager of Washington Township, Franklin 

County. Which is a neighboring township to - abut 

to this township and also SGI's property borders our 

township. 
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Speaking of history, you know, they've 

been a big part of our history for a long, long 

time. And as a lot of things, clear back to the 

copper mines that was up there, those kind of 

originated in my opinion from the copper mines. 

That's when they found the rock and expanded on that 

years ago. There's a lot of history, there's a lot 

of quarry hills up there. There's a lot of - even 

though this project is not in Washington Township, 
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there are old quarries and there was quarry 

operations done in Washington Township. When they 

moved out, left out, each one of them has been 

reclaimed in some fashion and, you know, we didn 1 t 

have no issues. 

As a Township Manager, we have to be 

and are concerned with everything I've heard in here 

tonight. We're concerned about traffic, we're 

concerned about, you know, air quality, we're very 

concerned about water quality. We're concerned 

about, you know, everything that you are concerned 

about. 

medium. 

As a township, we have to try to get a happy 

And I really feel that that's what needs to 

happen here. 

When the first gentlemen said that 

there was 140 people employed up there, that's just 

a pinpoint of who all this affects in our area. 

contractors, the - right down from plumbers, 

electricians, you know, builders, the excavation 

The 

contractors that work up there. Suppliers and even 

Lowes in Rouzerville. They're greatly affected by 

this company. All the vendors and all the supplies 

that they buy and that's all local. 

I heard testimony that they're, you 

know, good to the neighbors. I can say from 
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speaking from Washington Township, they've been very 

good to us. There - you know, when we have a need 

we did a 9/11 tribute, at times things weren't very 

good in our township. We built a museum for the 

to interpret the battle of Monterey. And we did 

that in a time when the economy was about as low as 

it was since the great depression. 

mill stepped up. 

And you know the 

they could. 

They helped us out every opportunity 

They did help us out when we have 

issues in our township. And we call them and say we 

got a problem - we give a phone call or we get 

somebody that answers the phone right away and we 

aren't special, we truly aren't special. And if 

someone doesn't answer the phone right away, we get 

a returned phone call that day. So they do listen 

to us and in most cases - well, I'll say in all 

cases they pay attention to what they say, we work 

together, usually it's three or four parties that 

have the issues. They work with us and usually the 

problem is taken care of. 

Have we had problems? Absolutely. 

This quarry in the last 100 years, yes, we've had 

issues. We've had issues with rocks coming up into 

- close to where the - you know, coming out of the 
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blast, different things like that. 

nothing but improve over the years. 

But they've done 

With any issue 

like that we have, we can seem to get they get it 

rectified. It's pretty well taken care of quickly 

and at no expense to the township residents. 

Some of that is for two reasons. Of 

course, regulations are getting more strict. I came 

from a quarry background myself. Not with them but 

a competitor if you will, but even as a competitor, 

we were also a vendor of theirs because we did black 

tops. We sold concrete to them. So we did other 

things that - we did a lot of things. So even as 

competitor, we were still dependent on the grit 

mill. 

With that said, a lot of what they've 

done hasn't been mandated by DEP or anybody else. 

It's that, you know, you bring a problem to them and 

they try to fix it because they know that they need 

us. They need our people to work in their mine. 

They need our vendors to take care of. 

try to take care of us. 

And they do 
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So I feel that there has to be a blend 

here. I feel that the permit should be granted. 

as residents, we as township officials, DEP works 

for us. They might not think that sometimes, but 
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they work for us. And with that said, you know, we 

can hold their feet to the fire to give them 

oversight to SGI. I think SGI is a very responsible 

organization but everybody needs to be watched at 

times. We as a township figure we have 15,000 

people watching us. That's 30,000 eyes if you 

haven't counted. 

We in the last 35, 40 years, we have 

more than doubled the size of our township. That 

has put an impact on our township right at the 

municipal level in Adams County. And we have 

actually improved our water quality. So it can be 

done. And I think it will be done if everybody 

works hard to do it. So with the one thing that's 

huge to townships is of course the economic 

development and I can tell you that we are probably 

the most hurt community when Fort Richie closed, 

because all the people that lived in Fort Richie and 

everything, our restaurants, our stores they really 

took a hard hit. And the last thing we need to do 

is lose a corporation like SGI. Trust me, the 

impact, you can't imagine what it would be. So I 

strongly urge that we watch what we do carefully, 

but we should support the permit. 

Thank you. 
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MR. REPETZ: Thank you, sir. 

MS. LANE: Thank you. My name is Mary 

Lane. And I'm a resident of Hamiltonban Township 

and part of Fairfield. I came here tonight I'd like 

to just commend this public process of everybody 

sitting down together and going over the pros and 

cons, the benefits, the risks. As one who came here 

to listen with no particular axe to grind, I'd like 

to commend the process. 

I'd also like to say I have heard some 

serious concerns about water and air quality. Some 

mentioned of people's health being possibly affected 

and illnesses reported, concern from a physician. 

concern of people sweeping, you know, the dust and 

grime from it. So my takeaway tonight is that the 

DEP has a very serious obligation here. 

And from what I've heard tonight, I 

don't think your job is finished. I'm concerned 

about what I hear about the testing and the process 

of the testing. And I think that there should be 

great transparency and a great effort made to be 

sure that the testing is independent. And that it 

satisfies what are today's standards for the 

testing, that things be looked at very carefully 

because the issues here on all sides are severely 
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overlooked. 

So I would ask the DEP to be sure you 

can do your due diligence as diligently as possible 

because all of this is too important to let it slip. 

Thank you. 

MR. REPETZ: Just looking at the 

clock, it's after 9:00. We've hit the two-hour mark 

and unfortunately we're going to have to start to 

wrap things up. Again, we will be taking written 

comments for the next two weeks. We can still take 

another couple of comments if their concise and to 

the point. We can still get those in now if 

somebody wishes to come up and still take advantage 

of giving oral testimony tonight. So just a 

reminder we're going to have to start to wrap things 

up. We can't just keep going forever. 

Okay. 

So try to brief. 

MR. LEAHY: My name is Bill Leahy, 

L-E-A-H-Y. My family has owned a house for about 70 

years up the road. We're not immediately adjacent 

to the blasts. In fact, growing up here, the mine 

was always a part of our lives. And I think finally 

- listening tonight it's clear that there is - you 

know, this a different era than 70 years ago. 
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There's more people here for better or worse. There 

is an economic base that's shifting, the mine is an 

important competent of that. 

I do - what I'm hearing tonight on 

both sides is really - there needs to be additional 

analysis from beyond the company, no disrespect. 

But I really would encourage you to take a hard look 

at all the data from an objective independent third 

party standpoint before you move forward with this. 

Thanks. 

MR. REPETZ: Thank you. Anyone else? 

Sir? 

MR. ROY: 

S-T-E-P-H-E-N, R-0-Y. 

My name is Stephen Roy, 

I live in Carroll Valley. 

And I haven't - I read through the 

response from the earlier meeting and everything, 

and I saw a mention of one plant species that's rare 

but not on the endangered species list. And I have 

the experience of encountering two bog turtles, 

which I understand they're - I want to further file 

a written response in a little more time. I worked 

a hard day today, so it's getting a little bit long 

sitting here. 

84 

But anyway one I observed where it was 

down on route 16 near Lake May squashed by a car. 
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It's a pretty distinctive turtle. It's North 

America's smallest turtle. And in reading the 

response, the company's response to the last - at 

the last meeting about a rare plant, that was raised 

not being on the endangered species list. This one 

is both on the federal and state endangered species 

list. 

DCNR, that's what I believe I have, 

their publication, that rates it as Sl or S2, 

imperiled. This is the same turtle you find over at 

Strawberry Hill. They built an exhibit at the old 

abandoned quarry there which coincidently is the 

same material and same rock formation and stuff I 

believe as what SGI has up on the top of Pine Hill 

here. 

Then again, this thing is much 

endangered. I didn't see any mention where there 

was any survey done for this. And I traveled up and 

walked along Iron Springs Road, up by the wetlands 

that are in peril that are going to be destroyed by 

this project. 

they live. 

There's seeps up there and this where 

I don't think God could design a better 

animal to hide to test the human being species. 

They're so reclusive, even the wildlife specialist 
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have trouble finding them. They hibernate in the 

mud in the winter underwater in the river in the 

winter. They're so small, people don't even notice 

them. 

I'd just like to ask - I heard other 

people asking about other species if we can have 

this one. This one is rated very rare. That's all 

I wanted to say. I'm going to file a more detailed 

statement when I have the opportunity. 

I'm pretty beat, I've worked a hard day. 

Thank you. 

MR. REPETZ: Anyone else? 

one more comment. 

MR. WHITCOMB: Thank you. 

But tonight 

We'll take 
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My name is Lionel Whitcomb. I live at 

2545 Mountain Brick Road in Hamiltonban. And I'd 

like to thank all of you guys for coming tonight. 

And I have to tell you this is one of the hardest 

issues that I've ever faced as a community member 

here in Fairfield. 

I've lived in Fairfield for 35 years, 

most of my adult life. And I see friends on both 

sides of this room. And this is not easy, I don't 

envy you guys from DEP. 

If my job had the mission statement of 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
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to protect Pennsylvania's air, land 1 and water from 

pollution and provide for the health and safety of 

its citizens, I would have some serious questions 

right now. I do not believe that SGI's current best 

practices will protect the Tom's Creek environment. 

And any reasonable person, you don't have to be an 

expert. Any reasonable person can juxtapose the 

health of Miney's Branch and Tom's Creek and 

understand the current mining practices are not 

going to protect that environment. 

87 

When this issue first took place, when 

this land first turned over to SGI, I sat down - I 

invited the president of SGI to my office and I sat 

down with him and I said sir, is there any way - is 

there any way we can find a balance? Can we find a 

balance so that we don't lose jobs in our community 

and we don't destroy the environment? I said, can 

you mine Pine Hill without destroying that 

environment and the answer was no. 

I disagreed with that gentlemen at 

that time and I disagree with him today. I believe 

that we can find a balance. Any health of any 

community is about finding a balance. Of course 

jobs are important. But our future lies within 

protecting this environment. 
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I believe that if you fine people from 

DEP hold their feet to the fire - and they are smart 

people, they will find a way. They will find a way 

other than 300 foot buffers and permissible 

discharges into Tom's Creek. 

to make this work. 

They will find a way 

I also want to speak to the 

gentlemen's who comment about an economic impact. I 

just want to say that there are many, many variables 

to understanding an economic impact analysis. You 

really have to understand how many people live here 

in Hamiltonban that are affected by those jobs. 

really have to trace the money to understand who 

You 

owns SGI and where that money is being funneled and 

reinvested. These are issues you have to understand 

before you can stand up here and say that the 

economic impact analysis, that argument out weighs 

the environment. So I disagree with that argument. 

One more comment I'd like to make, I 

live pretty far from the mine and I've never had 

green dust or the blast bother me a heck of a lot 

until this summer when SGI decided to provide grit 

or gravel to pave roads. And I sat on my farm, 

mowing my lawn like I do every weekend, in 

astonishment as every time a car came down that 
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road, a cloud of green dust coated my barn and my 

house. Every time a car comes down the road. And I 

have to ask, if SGI understands that there's 

asbestos in that element, why in the world would 

they put it down this gravel on a public road? 

I would ask that that process cease 

until we know the answer. And I think the testing 

that has to be done by an independent company. I 

truly hope we can find that balance. And I truly 

hope that we can heal as a community and keep our 

friends on both sides of the room. Thank you. 

MR. REPETZ: Thank you sir. With 

our numbers dwindling, I think we're going to have 

to call for a close to this public hearing this 

evening. 

On behalf of DEP, we would like to 

thank you for taking the time and effort to come out 

tonight to participate in this process. Especially 

considering the cold and wind conditions that we all 

had to battle to get here this evening. 

So thank you very much. Again, we 

will take written comments for two additional weeks. 

Please see us if you need the contact information 

for where to submit those. Please be very careful 

when you walk out the door tonight. There's some 
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slippery conditions outside. 

any accidents. 

We don't want to see 

90 

Travel safely home. That brings us to 

a close. Thank you very much for your attendance 

and your participation. 

* * * * * * * * 

HEARING CONCLUDED AT 9:10 P.M. 

* * * * * * * * 
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